
 
 

MEETING OF THE  
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
February 21, 2017 at 8:30 a.m. 

 
King County Housing Authority 
Snoqualmie Conference Room 

700 Andover Park W 
Tukwila, WA 98188 

 

A G E N D A 
I. Call to Order  

II. Roll Call  

III. Public Comment  

IV. Approval of Minutes  
 

Board Meeting Minutes – December 19, 2016  

 

1 

V. Approval of Agenda  

VI. Consent Agenda  

A. Voucher Certification Reports for November 2016 

B. Voucher Certification Reports for December 2016 

C. Resolution No. 5560: A Resolution of the King County Housing Authority 
authorizing an Interlocal Cooperative Purchasing Agreement for Consulting 
Services related to renewal and expansion of an Energy Performance 
Contract by the Sedro-Woolley Housing Authority 

 

     2 
     3 
 
 
     4 

VII. Resolutions for Discussion & Possible Action 
  

A. None.  

 

 

VIII. Briefings & Reports  
 

A. New Bank Accounts 5  

B. 2016 Year End Investment Report 6 



KCHA Board of Commissioners’ Agenda 
February 21, 2017 Board Meeting 
Page 2 of 2 
 

C. Fourth Quarter CY 2016 Procurement Report 7 

D. Fourth Quarter CY 2016 Summary Write-offs 8 

E. Fourth Quarter CY 2016 Executive Dashboard Report 9 

IX. Executive Session 

A. To review the performance of a public employee (RCW 42.30.110 (1) (g))   

X. Executive Director Report       

XI. KCHA in the News  10  

XII. Commissioner Comments 

XIII. Adjournment 

Members of the public who are disabled and require special accommodations or 
assistance at the meeting are requested to notify the Board Coordinator, Jessica 
Olives, in writing at 600 Andover Park West, Seattle, WA 98188 or by calling 
206-574-1194 prior to the meeting date. 



T 
A 
B 

 
N 
U 
M 
B 
E 
R 

 
1 



 
MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE 
KING COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY 

 
Monday, December 19, 2016 

 
 
I.  CALL TO ORDER 
 

The regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners of the King County Housing 
Authority was held on Monday, December 19, 2016 at the King County Housing 
Authority, 700 Andover Park West, Tukwila, WA 98188. There being a quorum, 
the meeting was called to order by Vice-Chair Michael Brown at 8:33 a.m.  

 
II. ROLL CALL  
 
 Present: Commissioner Doug Barnes via phone (Chair), Commissioner 

Michael Brown (Vice-Chair), Commissioner Susan Palmer, 
Commissioner TerryLynn Stewart, and Commissioner John Welch 

  
III. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
None. 

 
IV.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
On motion by Commissioner Stewart and seconded by Commissioner Welch, the 
Board unanimously approved the minutes from the Board of Commissioners’ 
meeting of November 21, 2016. 

 
V. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

On motion by Commissioner Palmer and seconded by Commissioner Stewart, the 
Board unanimously approved the December 19, 2016 Board of Commissioners’ 
meeting agenda. 
 

VI. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

A. Voucher Certification Reports for October 2016 
 

October 2016 
GENERAL PROPERTIES 

    Bank Wires / ACH Withdrawals 
 

9,719,456.54 

 
Subtotal 9,719,456.54 

    Accounts Payable Vouchers 
               Key Bank Checks #305657-#306174 
 

5,417,187.76 
Tenant Accounting Checks #10246- #10276  6,5551.69 
Commerce Bank Direct Payment  76,168.56 

 
Subtotal 5,499,908.01 

    Payroll Vouchers 
              Checks - #90277 – #90303   26,606.27 



KCHA Board of Commissioners’ 
December 19, 2016 KCHA Meeting Minutes 
Page 2 of 6 
 

            Direct Deposit   1,325,550.19 

 
Subtotal 1,352,156.46 

    Section 8 Program Vouchers 
            Checks - #615379-#615695 
 

192,562.99 
          ACH  - #362445-#365335 

 
10,521,245.50 

 
Subtotal 10,713,808.49 

       Purchase Card / ACH Withdrawal 
 

208,490.76 

 
Subtotal 208,490.76 

   

 

GRAND 
TOTAL 27,493,820.26 

 
 

BOND PROPERTIES 
Bond Properties Total (31 different properties) 3,002,628.67 

 
On motion by Commissioner Welch, seconded by Commissioner Stewart, 
the Board approved the consent agenda. 

VII.  RESOLUTIONS FOR DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION 
 

A. Resolution No. 5557: Authorizing Higher Payment Standards for the 
Housing Choice Voucher Program (HCV) 

Andrew Calkins, Senior Program Manager briefed the Board on Resolution 
No. 5557 and reiterated the adoption of the HCV multi-tiered payment 
standards by the Board, in February 2016. Mr. Calkins provided an update 
on the review of payment standard levels and recommended levels for 2017, 
which represent an increase to the Payment Standards from those adopted 
in February 2016. Mr. Calkins also explained the proposed implementation 
plan, cost implications and financial impact. 
 
All questions raised by the Commissioners were satisfactorily addressed by 
staff. 
 
On motion by Commissioner Stewart, seconded by Commissioner Palmer, 
the Board unanimously approved Resolution No. 5557. 

B. Resolution No. 5558: Authorizing the Authority to loan up to $12,000,000 
in Moving To Work funds to finance energy efficiency improvements at 
Public Housing properties; and authorizing the execution of related 
documents 

Connie Davis, Deputy Executive Director, presented Resolution No. 5558 to 
the Board providing background information on the Energy Performance 
Contract (EPC) with Johnston Controls and an update on the contract 
measures. Ms. Davis explained the funding process and discussed outreach 
conducted to Residents who received upgrades as well as shared a copy of 

 



KCHA Board of Commissioners’ 
December 19, 2016 KCHA Meeting Minutes 
Page 3 of 6 
 

the instructional handout given to Residents during informational training 
sessions. 
 
Ms. Davis introduced Beth Pearson as the Director of Real Estate Initiatives 
and EPC Project Manager. Ms. Pearson explained loan terms, risk and 
mitigation. Ms. Pearson also explained that the source of the loan would be 
Moving to Work working capital.  Savings generated by the Project will be 
sufficient to repay the loan and generate additional savings, which can be 
used by the Authority for other operating and capital expenses. 

 
All questions raised by the Commissioners were satisfactorily addressed by 
staff. 

 
On motion by Commissioner Palmer seconded by Commissioner Stewart, 
the Board unanimously approved Resolution No. 5558. 
 

C. Resolution No. 5559: Authorizing approval of the Comprehensive 
Operating and Capital Budgets for the Calendar Year beginning January 1, 
2017 

 
Craig Violante, Director of Finance presented the proposed 2017 
Comprehensive Operating and Capital Budgets. Funding sources have been 
identified for all expenditures reflected in the 2017 budget. Mr. Violante 
mentioned the budget was created with the assumption that KCHA will not 
obtain a 2017 Renewal Funding Inflation Factor adjustment for its Housing 
Choice Voucher program. Staff also assumed a 97% and 85% prorate in the 
Voucher and Public Housing programs respectively.   
 
Mr. Violante stated that the budgeting process was guided by the Board’s 
main goals as outlined for the agency. Mr. Violante presented the Operating 
and Capital budgets as well as Personnel Service Costs and Cash Balances. 
 
Mr. Violante discussed key aspects of the budget and noted the strength of 
KCHA’s Balance Sheet, continued operations of core programs such as 
Resident Services and Homeless Housing as well as planned expansion of 
households served across all programs and portfolios.  
 
Commissioner Welch asked for clarification in regard to unrestricted cash 
and how many residential units are supported in the proposed budget. 
 
Commissioner Brown asked about the budget theme for 2017 and 
mentioned that the budget was well thought-out, and wants to make certain 
the agency maintains a good balance between ongoing work and future 
investment decisions. 
 
Commissioner Palmer asked and received an update on KCHA’s collective 
bargaining status 

 



KCHA Board of Commissioners’ 
December 19, 2016 KCHA Meeting Minutes 
Page 4 of 6 
 

Commissioner Barnes thanked staff for additional informational budget 
meetings and commended the team. 

 
 Mr. Violante noted that a correction needs to be made to Resolution No. 

5559, due to a minor misprint in the date. Section 1, shall be modified to 
state ‘Total 2017 Expenditures’. 

 
 On motion by Commissioner Stewart seconded by Commissioner Palmer, 

the Board unanimously approved Resolution No. 5559 as modified. 
 

D. Resolution No. 5556: Approval to amend the Procurement Policy and 
Procedures Manual for the King County Housing Authority 

 
 Connie Davis, Deputy Executive Director, provided information on 

Resolution No. 5556 and explained that the Procurement Policy and 
Procedures Manual is a document that guides the procurement activities of 
KCHA employees.  
 
Ms. Davis stated that revisions were made to the existing Procurement 
Policy and Procedures Manual adopted by the Board (Resolution No. 
3067), in April 2000. Ms. Davis announced sections deleted, moved and 
added to the documents. Ms. Davis addressed the most significant changes 
detailed in the Board memorandum. 
 

On motion by Commissioner Welch seconded by Commissioner Stewart, 
the Board unanimously approved Resolution No. 5556. 

  
VIII.  BRIEFINGS & REPORTS 

A. New Bank Accounts 
 
Craig Violante, Director of Finance, reported that KCHA opened four new 
business bank accounts for the Highland Village Apartments and Vantage 
Point Apartments. 

 
B. Third Quarter 2016 Executive Dashboard Report 

Andrew Calkins, Senior Program Manager briefed Board of Commissioners on 
the Executive Dashboard for the third quarter of 2016. 

IX. STUDY SESSION: Leadership Development Initiative 
 

Tonya Harlan, Director of Human Resources presented the conceptual 
framework created for KCHA’s Leadership Development Initiative. Ms. Harlan 
provided an overview of the supplemental documents included in the Board 
materials (KCHA Management Philosophy, Employee Training Plan and 

 



KCHA Board of Commissioners’ 
December 19, 2016 KCHA Meeting Minutes 
Page 5 of 6 
 

KCHA Management University) and mentioned that further modifications will 
be made as the Plan matures. 
 
Overall, Commissioners were supportive of the Leadership Development 
Initiative. Commissioner Palmer asked whether specific training regarding 
management of the collective bargaining unit would be included; staff 
confirmed it would be.  
 
Commissioner Welch asked if the Initiative is new to the organization and if 
training would be provided in house or contracted out. Staff confirmed that the 
Initiative is new to the organization and is looking at resources to determine 
how the training will be provided, but the preference would be a combination 
of both. Mr. Welch emphasized that staff understand the value of the 
framework and continue to foster the Initiative. 
  
Commissioner Brown asked staff to be intentional when implementing 
professional and leadership development, to help employees build the skills 
they need to succeed on their career path. Mr. Brown spoke in favor of the 
Initiative and its potential to continue to build a talented team and encourage 
Employee Engagement.  

 
X.  EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT  

 
Stephen Norman mentioned the appointment of Dr. Ben Carson as the new 
Secretary of U.S. Housing and Urban Development and provided an update. 
Mr. Norman expressed his concerns regarding the nominee for Director of the 
Office of Management and Budget (OMB). With a significant level of 
uncertainty as to funding levels in 2017, KCHA is taking the precautionary 
measure of putting holds on a number of budget proposals until 
appropriations become clearer. Mr. Norman assured the Board that staff is 
keeping a close eye on the process. 

 
Commissioner Welch asked about key administration positions to be filled by 
the new HUD Secretary. Mr. Norman stated that HUD Leadership will receive 
a completely new administrative staff and that the Council for Large Public 
Housing Authorities (CLPHA) is working with the new administration’s 
transition team. Mr. Norman mentioned that so far no one below the Secretary 
level has been appointed. 

 
XI.  KCHA IN THE NEWS 
  
  None. 

 
XII. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 
  
 None. 

 

 



KCHA Board of Commissioners’ 
December 19, 2016 KCHA Meeting Minutes 
Page 6 of 6 
 
XIII.  ADJOURNMENT 
 

On motion by Commissioner Stewart, seconded by Commissioner Palmer, the 
Board adjourned the meeting at 10:34 a.m. 

 
THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE  

COUNTY OF KING, WASHINGTON 
 
 
 

_____________________________ 
MICHAEL BROWN, Vice-Chair  

Board of Commissioners 
________________________  
    STEPHEN J. NORMAN 
    Secretary 

 



T 
A 
B 

 
N 
U 
M 
B 
E 
R 

 
2 













T 
A 
B 

 
N 
U 
M 
B 
E 
R 

 
3 













T 
A 
B 

 
N 
U 
M 
B 
E 
R 

 
4 



 

  
 
 
TO:  Board of Commissioners 
   
FROM: Connie Davis, Deputy Executive Director  

            
DATE: February 14, 2017 
 
RE: Resolution No. 5560:  A Resolution of the King County 

Housing Authority authorizing an Interlocal Cooperative 
Purchasing Agreement for Consulting Services related to 
Renewal and Expansion of an Energy Performance Contract 
by Sedro-Woolley Housing Authority 

 
Executive Summary: 
State law (RCW 39.34.030) and federal law (24 CFR 85.36) authorize governmental 
agencies to enter into interlocal cooperative purchasing agreements for the 
procurement of common goods and services.  Approval of this Resolution would allow 
the Housing Authority of the City of Sedro Woolley (SWHA) to ‘piggyback’ on KCHA’s 
procurement of consulting services from Johnson Controls, Inc. (JCI) for energy 
performance contracting.   
 
Background: 
In 2015, KCHA completed a procurement process by signing an interagency 
agreement with the Washington State Department of Enterprise Services (DES) to 
procure the services of JCI for the extension and expansion of KCHA’s existing energy 
performance contract.  This approach complied with both HUD’s and KCHA’s 
procurement requirements and has allowed KCHA to save significant administrative 
time procuring and contracting with an energy services partner.  SWHA seeks to 
extend and possibly expand its own energy performance contract and, on February 16, 
2017, the SWHA Board of Commissioners adopted the attached Resolution (No. 2017-
455) to enter into the Interlocal Agreement with KCHA to procure JCI services. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
Passage of this Resolution will permit SWHA to work with JCI in the extension and 
expansion of SWHA’s self-implemented EPC.  Passage is recommended. 
 
 



INTERLOCAL COOPERATIVE PURCHASING AGREEMENT 
 
 
 
Pursuant to Chapter 39.34 of the Revised Code of Washington State, the Housing Authority of the City of 
Sedro-Woolley (SWHA) and the Housing Authority of the County of King (KCHA) hereby agree to the 
terms of this Interlocal Cooperative Purchasing Agreement for the use of the solicitation process in 
obtaining energy performance contract (EPC) consulting services with Johnson Controls Inc. (JCI) for the 
purposes of self-implementing an EPC..  The following terms and conditions are applicable to this 
Agreement: 
 
1.  Each party has agreed that KCHA has followed the HUD procurement process at 24 CFR 85.36 and 
KCHA’s Procurement Policy in obtaining energy performance contract services with JCI. 
 
2.  Each party has agreed that KCHA’s decision to contract with JCI is without prejudice and meets 
applicable laws and policies. 
 
3.  Each party has agreed to enter into separate energy services proposals and contracts with JCI, with 
each set of documents having specific terms and agreements.   
 
4.  A party to this Agreement shall not accept responsibility for the performance of JCI contracted for by 
the other party as a result of this Agreement. 
 
5.  A party to this Agreement shall not be responsible for the payment of any item(s) or service(s) 
contracted for by the other party as a result of this Agreement. 
 
6.  This Agreement shall continue in force until cancelled in writing by either party. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Interlocal Cooperative Purchasing 
Agreement by having their representatives affix their signatures below. 
 
 
Housing Authority of the County 
of King 
600 Andover Park West 
Tukwila, WA  98188 
 

Housing Authority of the City of Sedro-
Woolley 
830 Township St 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

 
 
 

       

Signature                                                  Date Signature                                                   Date 
 

Stephen J. Norman  Laurie Fellers  
Executive Director  Chair, SWHA 
 
 
 



THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 5560 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING 
AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO ENTER INTO  

AN INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT WITH THE  
HOUSING AUTHORITY OF CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY FOR CONSULTING 

SERVICES IN CONNECTION WITH AN ENERGY PERFORMANCE CONTRACT  
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 

WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the City of Sedro-Woolley (SWHA) seeks 

to secure consulting services for an energy performance contract (an EPC); and 

WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the County of King (KCHA) has followed 

the HUD procurement process, 24 CFR 85.36 and KCHA’s procurement policy in 

procuring EPC consulting services from Johnson Controls, Inc. (JCI) under a Master 

Energy Services Agreement dated in June 16, 2015; and  

WHEREAS, SWHA wishes to use the services of JCI; and 

WHEREAS, RCW Chapter 39.34 (The Interlocal Cooperation Act) permits 

public agencies to cooperate and exercise joint powers in carrying out their public 

purposes, including the purchase of goods and services; and, 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 

COMMISSIONERS OF THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF 

KING; THAT: 

The Executive Director is hereby authorized to enter into an Interlocal 

Cooperative Purchasing Agreement with SWHA substantially in the form attached.  



Resolution No. 5560 SWHA and KCHA Interlocal Consultant EPC 
February 21, 2017 KCHA Board Meeting 
Page 2 of 2 
 

ADOPTED AT A REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF 

COMMISSIONERS OF THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF 

KING THIS 21ST DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2017. 

 

THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE 
COUNTY OF KING, WASHINGTON 

 
 

____________________________________ 
DOUGLAS J. BARNES, Chair 

 
Attest: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
 STEPHEN J. NORMAN, Secretary 



T 
A 
B 

 
N 
U 
M 
B 
E 
R 

 
5 



 
 
To: Board of Commissioners           
  
From: Craig Violante, Director of Finance 
 
Date: February 14, 2017 
 
Re:       New Bank Accounts 
 
Since the last Board meeting KCHA opened four new bank accounts.   
 
Arbor Heights Apartments 
 
• Allied Residential Inc. AAF, Housing Authority of the County of King – 

Arbor Heights – Operating 
• Allied Residential Inc. AAF, Housing Authority of the County of King – 

Arbor Heights – Tenant Trust 
• Housing Authority of the County of King – Arbor Heights – Depository 

 
Bank: Bank of America  
 
Purpose:   
 
Allied Residential Inc. opened two full business checking accounts for Arbor 
Heights Apartments. The Operating Account will be used to pay operating 
expenses related to the property. The account will primarily receive wires from 
the Depository Account and issue checks, wires, and ACH payments.   
 
The Tenant Trust account will be used to hold tenant security deposits. 
Transactions will include and be limited to deposits from the depository 
account and transfers to the operating account for tenant refunds. KCHA policy 
requires tenant security deposits and the practice is to hold security deposits in 
separate bank accounts. 
 
The Authority opened a full business checking account with Bank of America 
that will be used to receive and hold property income. The Depository Account 
will also wire funds to the Operating Account to fund operating expenses.  
 
Southwood Square Apartments 
 
• Housing Authority of the County of King – Southwood Square – Depository 

 
 
 



New Bank Accounts 
February 21, 2017 KCHA Board Meeting 
Page 2 of 2 
 
Bank: Bank of America 
 
Purpose:  The Authority opened a full business checking account with Bank of 
America that will be used to receive and hold property income. The Depository 
Account will also wire funds to the Operating Account to fund operating 
expenses.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



T 
A 
B 

 
N 
U 
M 
B 
E 
R 

 
6 



 
 
 
To: Board of Commissioners           
  
From: Craig Violante, Director of Finance 
 
Date: February 14, 2017 
 
Re:       2016 Investment Recap 
 
Executive Summary 
As of December 31, 2016, KCHA had $194.5 million in cash and investments, 
split between (1) the KCHA Internal Pool (the Internal Pool), (2) the 
Washington State Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP), (3) cash held by 
trustees and cash in traditional checking and savings accounts and (4) loans to 
housing partners and to the Energy Performance Contract (EPC) project. 
 
Snapshot at 12/31/2016 for year-end investment report:

Yield @
Amounts 12/31/2016

Cash Invested in Internal KCHA Pool $53,135,486 1.12%
Cash Held in the LGIP 82,671,582 0.51% (1)

Cash Held by KCHA & Outside Trustees 41,788,525 0.20% (2)

Cash loaned for low income housing purposes and to EPC project 16,982,534 4.98%

$194,578,127 1.000%

1) 0.47% was the average rate for all of 2016
2) Estimate  

 
For all of 2016, the Internal Pool average yield was 1.09% while the LGIP’s was 
0.47%. The higher return from the Internal Pool versus the LGIP increased 
KCHA’s total investment return by $333,000, down from $431,000 because the 
2016 increase in short-term rates has narrowed the gap between the Internal 
Pool and the LGIP. 
 
Out of the total portfolio of $194.5 million, $108.2 million is considered 
“investable”. The remainder is in the form of loans; is held by trustees or 
management agents; or will be spent within the next 12 months.  Although the 
Board has authorized an allocation of up to 60% of investable cash in the 
Internal Pool, short-term liquidity and forecasted cash needs, and an 
assessment of future interest rates, influence how much is actually invested in 
the Pool. As a result, 49.1% of investable cash was in the Internal Pool at the 
end of 2016. 
 



2016 Investment Recap 
February 21, 2017 KCHA Board Meeting 
Page 2 of 6 
 
Historical Context  
The Board of Commissioners adopted an Investment Policy in 2005 and several 
updates have since been adopted.  According to the policy the primary 
objectives, in priority order, of the Authority’s investment activities are: 

• Legality: Conforms to all applicable Federal, state and local 
government requirements. 

• Safety: Safety of the principal is the foremost objective of the 
investment program. Investments of KCHA shall be undertaken in a 
manner that seeks to ensure the preservation of capital in the overall 
portfolio. To obtain this objective, diversification is required in order 
that potential losses on individual securities do not exceed the income 
generated from the remainder of the portfolio. 

• Liquidity: the Authority’s investment portfolio will remain sufficiently 
liquid to enable KCHA to meet all operating requirements that might be 
reasonably anticipated. 

• Return on Investment: the Authority’s investment portfolio shall be 
designated with the objective of attaining a market rate of return 
throughout budgetary and economic cycles, taking into account the 
Authority’s investment risk constraints and the cash flow characteristics 
of the portfolio. 

 
At the beginning of 2009, KCHA invested most excess funds in the LGIP. The 
LGIP is an investment vehicle operated by the Washington State Treasurer, and 
is open to all local governments. Its strength lies in its combination of liquidity 
and security. It has a policy of purchasing AAA-rated securities and maintaining 
a weighted average maturity of 60 days or less.  
 
With the goal of increasing investment yields, in March 2009, KCHA embarked 
on a strategy of investing in securities outside of the LGIP.  These securities 
could have a maturity of up to three years and were comprised primarily of 
securities from Government Sponsored Entities (GSEs) such as the Federal 
Home Loan Bank (FHLB), Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation 
(FHLMC—also known as Freddie Mac), Government National Mortgage 
Association (GNMA—also known as Ginnie Mae) and the Federal National 
Mortgage Association (FNMA—also known as Fannie Mae).    
 
From 2009 through 2011, the KCHA Internal Pool performed exceptionally 
well, beating the LGIP by an average of 114 basis points (1.14%). Starting in 
2012, the Federal Reserve’s monetary policy of Quantitative Easing, intended to 
keep medium and long-term rates low and stimulate the economy, had a 
deleterious effect on KCHA’s Internal Investment Pool and the gap between the 
Internal Pool and the LGIP narrowed. Beginning in 2014, the gap began to 
widen again, with the Internal Pool beating the LGIP by 77 basis points in 2014 
and 90 basis points in 2015.  In 2016, spurred by a sharp outflow of capital from 
debt investments (bonds) and into equity investments (the stock market), short 
term rates finally started to rise, and by the end of the year the gap had 
narrowed to 63 basis points. 



2016 Investment Recap 
February 21, 2017 KCHA Board Meeting 
Page 3 of 6 
 
 
 

0.00%

0.20%

0.40%

0.60%

0.80%

1.00%

1.20%

1.40%

1.60%

1.80%
Ju

n-
09

Se
p-

09
De

c-
09

M
ar

-1
0

Ju
n-

10
Se

p-
10

De
c-

10
M

ar
-1

1
Ju

n-
11

Se
p-

11
De

c-
11

M
ar

-1
2

Ju
n-

12
Se

p-
12

De
c-

12
M

ar
-1

3
Ju

n-
13

Se
p-

13
De

c-
13

M
ar

-1
4

Ju
n-

14
Se

p-
14

De
c-

14
M

ar
-1

5
Ju

n-
15

Se
p-

15
De

c-
15

Rates of Return
LGIP vs. Internal KCHA Pool

Internal Pool

LGIP

 
  
Since inception of the Internal Pool in 2009, nearly $2.6 million of additional 
investment income has been earned compared to what would have been earned 
had the funds been in the LGIP. 
 
Total Rate of Return Investing 
In late 2013, KCHA began managing the Internal Pool using Total Rate of 
Return principles. Prior to this change in philosophy, all investments were held 
to maturity or until they were called, regardless of their interest rates. Under 
Total Rate of Return investing, certain portfolio investments are sold and 
replaced with new securities.  This is usually done to lock-in profits, increase 
investment yields, extend the life of investments with favorable rates, or rid the 
portfolio of under-performing investments, selling at a loss but re-investing at 
higher rates. 
 
Below is a history of all 2016 Total Rate of Return trades: 
 

Trade Coupon Old New Days Gain/
Date Amount Yield Yield Extended* (Loss)

3/29/2016 $1,000,000 1.050% 1.200% 305 $1,500
4/15/2016 $1,000,000 0.830% 0.980% 471 ($59)
6/17/2016 $1,000,000 0.912% 0.720% 48 $3,782
9/16/2016 $1,000,000 1.008% 1.000% 756 $2,876

Total Gain  $8,099

* The number of additional days the newly purchased 
investment will be outstanding vs. the sold investment

 
 
 



2016 Investment Recap 
February 21, 2017 KCHA Board Meeting 
Page 4 of 6 
 
Aggregate profits since the inception of Total Rate of Return investing are 
$46,229.  Each trade also resulted in an increased market yield and generally 
higher future cash flows.  
 
Portfolio Management 
KCHA currently purchases three main types of investment structures: 
 

• Investments that can be redeemed at pre-determined times at the option 
of the issuer.  These investments are called “callables”. The bond issuer 
typically must offer slightly higher rates of return for the option of calling 
the bonds. 
 

• Investments that increase interest payments at pre-set amounts and at 
pre-set times.  These bonds, called “steps”, almost always carry call 
features in addition to the step features. 
 

• Investments that cannot be called, either because they were issued that 
way, or because the call options were not exercised by the issuer.  These 
investments are known as “bullets”. 

 
While bullets are the preferred bonds for Total Rate of Return investing, they 
are not the only type of investment that should be included in a well-balanced 
portfolio. Although bullets offer purchasers more certainty, they carry slightly 
lower rates than comparable callable bonds (generally 5-10 basis points), and 
when rates rise, they will lose value more quickly than steps.  KCHA’s internal 
investment portfolio at the end of December 2016 contains a mix of all three 
investment types: 
 

Amt Invested % of Portfolio Average Yield
Callable $21,999,200 42.3% 1.20%
Step* $6,000,000 11.5% 1.02%
Bullet $24,052,940 46.2% 1.06%

$52,052,140 100.0% 1.12%

* Step bonds are also callable; the Board has authorized up to 
50% of the portfolio to be step investments  

 
Strategy for 2017 
At its December 17, 2015 meeting, the Federal Open Market Committee (FOMC, 
the “Fed”), raised the target federal funds rate for the first time in nearly a 
decade, from a range of zero to 0.25% to a range of 0.25% to 0.50%. After a 
year’s hiatus, rates were again increased by 0.25% to a range of 0.50% to 0.75% 
on December 15, 2016.  Even before the 2016 increase by the FOMC, rates had 
begun to spike upward as a result of investing dollars leaving bonds and flowing 
into equities.  Below is a comparison of the “yield curve” at the beginning of the 
fourth quarter and at the end: 



2016 Investment Recap 
February 21, 2017 KCHA Board Meeting 
Page 5 of 6 
 
 
 
 

 
 
The yield curve as of February 2, 2017 is essentially unchanged from the end of 
2016.  General consensus is that by the end of 2017, rates will be somewhere in 
the range of 0.75% to 1.50%, with next increase expected this June. 
 
Since rates have begun to rise, the number of times the issuer has exercised 
their rights to call bonds in KCHA’s portfolio has fallen to near zero.  $28 
million, or 54%, of KCHA’s portfolio is invested in instruments with call 
features.  As the weighted average of these investments is 1.17%, it is likely that 
few, if any, of these investments will be called in 2017.   
 
For 2017, KCHA will be pursuing a bifurcated strategy. 
 

• To increase the size of the Internal Pool, KCHA will be looking for two 
types of investments:  steps and callables.    

o In general, step investments with a higher starting coupon rate 
have smaller incremental rate increases, while those with smaller 
starting rates have more aggressive increases.  The key will be 
matching the rate structure with the forecasted rise in interest 
rates. 

o Callable investments carry higher interest rates than non-callables 
as the issuer has to pay a premium for the increased uncertainty 
to the buyer.  In a period of rising rates, the chances of an 
investment being called are reduced, so it can be a good time to 
take advantage of the higher yields. 



2016 Investment Recap 
February 21, 2017 KCHA Board Meeting 
Page 6 of 6 
 

• KCHA’s portfolio of non-callable investments is $24 million or 46% of 
the portfolio. This tranche of investments has a weighted average rate 
1.06%, with individual investments therein yielding from 0.72% to 
2.25%.  The plan is to divest the portfolio of the lowest performers and 
reinvest the proceeds at higher rates. Using the investment with the 
0.72% yield as an example, KCHA will receive interest proceeds of 
around $7,800 between now and maturity in March 2018. If the 
investment is instead sold, a cash loss of around $5,000 to $6,000 would 
be incurred, but if invested in a 3-year callable instrument at a current 
rate of 1.7%, interest proceeds would instead be $18,400 through March 
2018 for a net increase in cash during the period of $4,600 to $5,600. It 
will be important to undertake this portion of the strategy slowly and 
judiciously as extending the duration of an investment subjects it to 
further interest rate risk.   

 
Investing diligence will be a key in 2017 and staff will rely heavily on the advice 
of professional investment brokers to guide KCHA through the next 12-24 
months. 



T 
A 
B 

 
N 
U 
M 
B 
E 
R 

 
7 



  
 
TO:  Board of Commissioners 
   
FROM: Tim Baker, Senior Management Analyst 

            
DATE: February 14, 2017 
 
RE: Fourth Quarter CY 2016 Procurement Report 
 

In order to update the Board concerning KCHA’s procurement activities, staff is 
presenting the attached Quarterly Procurement Report. This report covers all 
procurement activities from October through December 2016 that involved the 
award of contracts valued over the amount of $100,000 and change orders that have 
cumulatively exceeded 10% of the original or not to exceed contract amount.  Note 
that the recently updated KCHA procurement policy increases the threshold for 
public bidding from $100 thousand to $150 thousand; however, this report will 
continue to use the lower limit. 
 
Awarded Contracts Over $100,000: 
The awarded contracts section of the report lists the issuing department, contract 
type, the company awarded the contract, the award and estimate/budgeted amounts, 
procurement process involved, the number of bids received and notes about the 
procurement.  
 
In the fourth quarter, there were 4 contracts awarded and valued at more than 
$100,000, representing 51% of the contracts executed in the quarter.  The largest 
contract executed for construction work was for $140,105 awarded to Lakeridge 
Paving for the Corinthian asphalt replacement project.  The largest non-construction 
contract executed was for $101,135 to Quantum Management for property 
management services at Abbey Ridge and Highland Village. 
 
Contract Change Orders Exceeding 10%: 
KCHA’s internal procedures require heightened oversight and review once a contract 
has incurred change orders valued at more than 10% of the original contract amount. 
The change order (CO) section of the report includes the issuing department, 
contract type, company awarded the contract, the original amount awarded, as well 
as the number of change orders, the amounts of the total change orders to date 
expressed both in dollars and percentages above the original contract value, and 
notes about the procurement.  Per the Board’s request, this section was divided 
between change orders issued in response to unforeseen field conditions or 



Fourth Quarter CY 2016 Procurement Report 
February 21, 2017 KCHA Board Meeting 
Page 2 of 2 
 

expanded project scopes, and change orders which were foreseen at the time the 
initial contract was let (primarily through contract extensions on multi-year 
contracts). The not-to-exceed total for the “foreseen” change order section is 
the projected total amount of the contract once all the foreseen change orders are 
completed.   
 
There were 5 “field condition” change or “scope change” order on contracts whose 
total value had exceeded 10% of the initial contract amount.  The largest one was 
$80,000 that was issued to Reliable Moving for tenant relocations due to renovation 
work at Forest Glen and Spiritwood. 
 
There was 1 anticipated change order involving the extension of the contract as 
allowed in the original contract.  The change order was issued to Highline Schools for 
the Greenbridge  early learning and engagement programs. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Issuing Department Contract type Contract Awarded to Estimate/Budget 
Amount

Initial Contract 
Amount

NTE with 
extensions

Procurement 
Process # of bids

Asset Management property management services Quantum Management $120,000 $101,135 $101,135 RFP 4 One year contract with month-to-month renewals thereafter
Asset Management Vantage Glen retaining wall Turnstone Const $196,432 $129,950 $129,950 sealed bid 3 New contractor for KCHA
Asset Management Corinthian asphalt replacement Lakeridge Paving $148,183 $140,105 $140,105 sealed bid 4 Contractor has performed many successful projects for KCHA
Capital Const/WX Hillsview apartments roof replacement Axis Roof and Gutter $202,132 $138,533 $138,533 sealed bid 1 New contractor for KCHA

Totals $666,747 $509,723 $509,723
   

Contracts exceeding 10% cumulative change order-Condition Changes

Issuing Department Contract type Contract awarded to Initial Contract 
Amount/NTE*

Change Order 
Amount & No. 
This Quarter

Total Contract 
Value to Date

% Change 
from 

Original

Asset Management Corinthian electrical upgrades Brink Electric $79,000 $18,743 (3) $122,421 55% City of Seatac requiring electrical upgrades due to city electric codes
Asset Management Corinthian cabinet replacement iBuild, Inc. $189,313 $8,038 (2) $350,076 85% increased cabinet size for 12 units
Housing Management Vantage Point furnishings Bristol Design Group $91,573 $12,404 (1) $103,977 14% sales tax needed to be paid for this project
Housing Management-Maint landscaping at various sites Brightview $146,492 $40,095 (1) $186,587 27% added Northridge to the contract to free up staff time to provide additional resources to other northend sites
Resident Services moving services Reliable Moving $550,000 $80,000 (3) $630,000 15% Forest Glen relocation costs higher than projected & the Spiritwood relocation was added to the contract

Totals $1,056,378 $1,393,061

Contracts with contract extensions or other foreseen change orders

Issuing Department Contract type Contract awarded to NTE*
Change Order 
Amount & No. 
This Quarter

Current 
Contract Value % of NTE*

Resident Services Greenbridge early learning & engagement Highline Schools $308,000 $183,500 (2) $308,000 100% final extension through August 2017

Totals $308,000 $308,000
*NTE = Not To Exceed

Notes (Current Quarter Change Orders)

Notes (Current Quarter Change Orders)

KING COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY
QUARTERLY PROCUREMENT REPORT 

October-December 2016 (Fourth Quarter)

Awarded Contracts Over $100,000

Notes



T 
A 
B 

 
N 
U 
M 
B 
E 
R 

 
8 







T 
A 
B 

 
N 
U 
M 
B 
E 
R 

 
9 



King County Housing Authority Executive Dashboard
4th Quarter Dashboard: October 1 - December 31, 2016

actuals oct '13 - dec '16 Dec-16 target 3-yr avg 3-yr high 3-yr low

Finance

LGIP Rate
1

0.47% 0.18% 0.22% 0.49% 0.09%

Non-LGIP Investment Rate 
1.12% 0.65% 0.97% 1.12% 0.72%

Revenue to Budget

   (Budgeted $258,930,791)
109% 100% 102% 109% 96%

Expenditures to Budget

   (Budgeted $216,482,626)
100% 100% 98% 100% 97%

Property Management

Public Housing Occupancy Rate

   (3,666 units)
2

99.1% 98.0% 98.8% 99.3% 97.9%

Local Program Occupancy Rate

   (5,542 units)
98.7% 96.5% 98.6% 100.0% 97.8%

KCHA Units Owned
3 9,590                     9,590                   9,168                   9,590                   8,882                   

Section 8 Operations

Utilization Rate
4

   (Vouchers Leased: 9,524)
102% 102% 102% 105% 99.6%

Households Paying >40% 

   Income to Rent  (n = 2,455)
21% <25% 21% 24% 19%

Exit Data

Positive Exits 22% >25% 31% 64% 15%

Negative Exits 35% <20% 21% 39% 12%

Total Monthly Exits 55 -- 54 113 26

 

2
 Excludes some units in portfolio where turnover is not tracked monthly.

3
 Projected total units by 12/31/16.

 Denotes indicators of interest.

4
 Adjusted for 12-month incremental lease-up of new vouchers.

1
 Washington State no longer publishes target LGIP rates as of 4/1/2016. KCHA budget rate of 0.18% is used in its place.



T 
A 
B 

 
N 
U 
M 
B 
E 
R 

 
10 



KCHA IN THE NEWS 












































	201702 KCHA Board Agenda
	Tab Number 1
	201612 KCHA Board Minutes
	Monday, December 19, 2016
	I.  CALL TO ORDER
	II. ROLL CALL
	THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE
	COUNTY OF KING, WASHINGTON


	Tab Number 2
	201701 Voucher Report (LR)
	201701 Voucher Report (WX)
	Tab Number 3
	201702 Voucher Report (LR)
	201702 Voucher Report (WX)
	Tab Number 4
	201702 Resolution No. 5560 EPC Consult Interlocal Agrment SWHA KCHA (Memo)
	201702 Resolution No. 5560 EPC Consult Interlocal Agrment SWHA KCHA (Agreement)
	201702 Resolution No. 5560 EPC Consult Interlocal Agrment SWHA KCHA (Resolution)
	Tab Number 5
	201702 New Bank Accounts 2016-12
	From: Craig Violante, Director of Finance
	Date: February 14, 2017
	Re:       New Bank Accounts

	Tab Number 6
	201702 Investment Recap 2016
	From: Craig Violante, Director of Finance
	Date: February 14, 2017
	Re:       2016 Investment Recap

	Tab Number 7
	201702 Qtr 4 Procurement Report Memo
	201702 Qtr 4 Procurement Report (Attachment)
	Sheet1

	Tab Number 8
	201702 Qtr 4 Summary WriteOffs
	Tab Number 9
	201702 4th Quarter 2016 Dashboard
	Tab Number 10
	201702 KCHA in the News
	KCHA IN THE NEWS

